U.S. Department of Labor Mine Safety and Health Administration
1100 Wilson Boulevard

Arlington, Virginia 22209-3939

JUN 27 201

MEMORANDUM FOR PATRICIA W. SILVEY
Deputy Assistant Secretary for Operations
Mine Safety and Health Administration

THROUGH: PETER J. MONTALI (b) (6)
Acting Director of Accountabiliiy for
Mine Safety and Health Administration

FROM: ARLIE A. WEBB (b) (6)

JERRY J. KISSELL
Accountability Specialists

SUBJECT: MSHA Office of Accountability Audit, MNM South Central District,
Rolla-South Field Office, Rolla, Missouri, and () (6)
(b) (6)

Introduction

This memorandum summarizes the Office of Accountability (OA) audit of the Metal and Non
Metal South Central District, Rolla, Missouri (Rolla — South) field office. Audit subjects
included MSHA field activities, level of enforcement, Field Activity Reviews (FARs),
Accompanied Activities (AAs), MSHA supervisory and managerial oversight, and the
conditions and practices at the mine. The audit was conducted by Arlie A. Webb and Jerry J.
Kissell during the week of (°) (6) through (b) (6) . Positive findings as well
as issues requiring attention are included in this audit report.

Overview

The administrative (field office) portion of the audit was conducted on (®) (6) and
included an examination of the mine files, regular inspection reports, hazard complaint
inspections, Field Activity Review reports, and Accompanied Activity reports.

The mine-site portion of the audit was conducted on (b) (6) , and included an
examination of the mine office, mine records, mine map, mobile equipment including front
end loaders, forklifts, and bobcats (brakes, lights, backup alarm, tires, steering, etc.), access
ladders and back guards, elevated platforms and walkways, handrails, the bag house,
hydrators, driers, crushers, ball mill, electrical installations, classifier, the hydrate loading
dock, the research and development building, haul roads and access roads.

Accompanying the audit team was Rolla-South ) ©)

You can now file your MSHA forms online at www.MSHA.gov. It's easy, it's fast, and it saves you money!



S&S Rate Comparison

During FY 2010, the S&S rates for this field office were comparable to the district, but slightly
lower than the national average.

S&S Rate Comparison

Fiscal Year Rolla-South Field South Central National Average
Office District
2009 31% 27% 20%
2010 35% 36% 38%

Time and Activity Comparison

A comparison of FY 2009 and FY 2010 time distribution at the Rolla — South field office
shows that time in the other category has increased for inspections at surface facilities and is
above the national average. On-site time has increased for inspections at surface facilities
and is above the national average.

Time Distribution (%) — E01 Inspections at Surface Facilities

Citations

Citations

Total Total
Travel Other* - «% | lssued Issued

On-Site On-Site | Off-Site Percent
' FY 2009 19% 10% 64% 1% 7% 100%
| Nat'l Avg FY 2009 20% 11% 62% 4% 7% 100%
FY 2010 19% 11% 65% 1% 5% 100%
Nat'l Avg FY 2010 . 20% 10% 62% 4% 8% 100%

N Includes calibration of gas detection equipment, sampling equipment, and preparation and mailing of samples.

* Total On-Site time includes citations written on-site

A comparison of FY 2009 and FY 2010 time distribution at the Rolla — South field office

shows that time in the other category has increased for inspections at surface mines and is
above the national average. On-site time has decreased for inspections at surface mines but

is above the national average.

Time Distribution (%) — EO1 Inspections at Surface Mines

Total Citations | Citations Total
Travel Other* On-Site** Issued Issued Percent
On-Site | Off-Site

FY 2009 23% 9% 62% 2% 6% | 100%
Nat'l Avg FY 2009 . 26% | 12% 56% 3% 6% | 100%
FY 2010 23% 14% 60% 2% 3% 100%
Nat'l Avg FY 2010 25% 12% 56% 4% 7% 100%
* Includes calibration of gas detection equipment, sampling equipment, and preparation and mailing of samples.

** Total On-Site time includes citations written on-site




A comparison of FY 2009 and FY 2010 time distribution at the Rolla — South field office
shows that time in the other category has increased for inspections at underground mines but
is below the national average. On-site time has remained the same and is above the national
average.

Time Distribution (%) — EO1 Inspections at Underground Mines

Citations

Citations

Total Total
Travel Other* | . . .. | Issued Issued
On-Site On-Site | Off-Site Percent
FY 2009 18% 8% 68% 1% 5% 100%
Nat'l Avg FY 2009 24% 11% 60% 2% 5% | 100%
FY 2010 18% 10% 68% 1% 4% | 100%
Nat’l Avg FY 2010 23% 11% 60% 2% 6% 100%

* Includes calibration of gas detection equipment, sampling equipment, and preparation and mailing of samples.
**  Total On-Site time includes citations written on-site

Audit Results
The audit revealed positive findings in several areas, including the following:

1. MSHA personnel conducted themselves in a professional and courteous manner at all
times during the audit and during observed inspection activities.

2. Inspection activities conducted during the audit were thorough and in compliance with
agency policies and procedures.

3. MSHA personnel demonstrated excellent communications skills with the mine
operator.

4. Required Field Activity Reviews, Accompanied Activities, and Second-Level Reviews
for the Rolla-South field office were well documented and were in compliance with
agency policies and procedures.

5. During the mine-site portion of the audit, appropriate use of enforcement tools was
observed.

This audit also revealed several issues that require corrective actions, including the following:
(Supporting data for each issue can be found in the OA checklist and attachments)

1. Documentation in EO1 inspection reports for FY 2010 did not always support the
assertion that complete and thorough inspections were made in accordance with
agency policy and procedures. Areas of the mine were listed in notes as not being
inspected and equipment was listed as visual inspection only. (Checklist ltem No.1)

2. Although all hazard complaints received at the Rolla-South field office during the audit
period were investigated, the inspections were not always thorough. The report for an
investigation of a complaint concerning alleged failure to provide personal protective
equipment (PPE) while working with radioactive materials did not include any
documentation of radiation monitoring, sampling of the materials being handled, or a
review of the Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) for the materials. (Checklist ltem
No.1)

3. Citations issued during EO1 inspections conducted during previous quarters did not
always comply with agency policy and procedures. (Checklist ltem No.2)



Attachments
A. Office of Accountability Checklist

B. Citations/Orders Issued During the Audit

1. (0) () 57.15001

2. (b)(6) 57.14101(a)(2)
3. (b)(6) 57.11012

4. (b)(6) 57.20003(a)
5. (b) (6) 57.20003(a)
6. (b) () 57.20003(a)
7. (b) (6) 57.20003(c)

8. (b) (6) 57.4201(a)(2)

D. Examples of Citations with Questionable Evaluations



United States Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration
Office of Accountability

District [ South Central | Field Office Mine D [ (P)(6) ] Date [(b)(6)

Attachment A — Audit Checklist

Determine if complete and thorough inspections are being conducted and adequately
documented

Adequate [ | Inadequate Not Applicable [ |  Comments Below [ |

1. Although inspection notes for EO1 event No(P) (6) show the River Load Out could
not be inspected due to high water, Form 4000-49B shows the entire mine was
inspected.

2. During E01 event No(P) (6) _inspection notes document that thirteen individual
pieces of mobile equipment, including a forklift, a bobcat, and several trucks, were only
visually inspected. There is no documentation to show examinations of brakes,
steering, back-up alarms, etc, and no documentation that any of the equipment listed
was out of service. MSHA Form 4000-49B was missing from the field office copy of
this inspection report.

3. The investigation of a complaint alleging failure to provide personal protective
equipment (PPE) while working with radioactive materials was not thorough. There is
no documentation of radiation monitoring, sampling of the materials being handled, or
a review of Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) for those materials. Inspection notes
show the mine operator stated the exposure was approximately 0.064 millirems
(mrem) per hour, for a total of 0.0014 mrem per day. Based on an 8-hour day, this
exposure would total at least 0.512 mrem per day.

Determine if citations and orders issued during previous inspections were properly
2. evaluated for gravity, negligence, level of enforcement, number of persons affected,
and supported by documentation

Adequate | | Inadequate Not Applicable [ |  Comments Below [ |

A total of 53 citations and orders previously issued at this mine were reviewed.

1. Citation® ®)  was issued for a miner not wearing a safety belt while working on an
elevated area. Although the termination and the inspection notes document the miner
removed himself from the elevated area and was trained in the use of fall protection,
there is no documentation that fall protection was provided to the mirier. In addition, a
107(a) imminent danger order should have been considered.

2. Citation (b) (6) was issued for fuel leaking from under a front end loader. The fuel
spill was approximately 28 feet long by 3 feet wide. The location of the front end
loader is not mentioned in the narrative of the citation.

3. Citation(®) (6)  was issued for a damaged power cord supplying 480 volt power to a
floor fan near a kiln burner. The citation states the inner, energized conductors were
exposed, but the inspection notes indicate there were no bare copper wires exposed.
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United States Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration
Office of Accountability

District [ South Central | Field Office | RollaSouth | MineID | (b)(6) Date |[(b) (6)

Citations and accompanying notes should be consistent.

4. A 104(d)(1) Citation®®) ) was issued more than a month after an alleged violation.
During the investigation of a hazard complaint related to failure to use fall protection,
the inspector observed numerous employees and contractors using personal
protective equipment (PPE). Documentation in the inspection report shows a
determination of negative findings regarding the allegations. The citation and
accompanying notes show it to have been issued based on the statement of a former
employee. There was no documentation to show how a determination was made the
alleged condijtion or practice actually existed. The 104(d)(1) citation was terminated
when the inspector discussed fall protection and PPE with the mine operator, rather
than the operator taking corrective action.

(Additional examples are listed in Attachment C)

Evaluate the examination of required records and postings for compliance with
applicable standards

Adequate Inadequate [ |  NotApplicable [ |  Comments Below [ |

Evaluate the physical examination of active working areas of the mine and inspection
of mining cycles during the audit.
Adequate Inadequate | |  NotApplicable [ |  Comments Below [ |

5. Evaluate an on-site contaminant assessment and documentation during the audit
Adequate Inadequate [ |  NotApplicable [ |  Comments Below | |

Evaluate examinations of electrical equipment, transformer stations, and/or electrical
circuits during the audit.

Adequate Inadequate [ |  Not Applicable [ ] Comments Below [ ]




United States Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration
Office of Accountability

District [ South Central | Field Office Rolla South Mine ID Date [(P) (6)

Determine if adequate close out conferences are being conducted at the end of each
inspection.

| Adequate Inadequate | |  NotApplicable [ |  CommentsBelow [ | |

Determine if Possible Knowing/Willful (PKW) forms are documented and processed
according to agency policies and procedures.

Adequate Inadequate [ |  NotApplicable [ |  Comments Below [ |

Evaluate 103(i) spot inspection (E02) reports for the office/district being audited for
9. compliance with agency policies and procedures, including compliance with time
frames and separation of EO2 inspections from other events.

Adequate Inadequate [ |  NotApplicable [ |  Comments Below [ |

10 Determine if Hazard complaint inspections/investigations are being conducted
according to policy and procedures

Adequate Inadequate [ |  NotApplicable [ |  Comments Below [ ]

Ten hazard complaint (E03 / EO4) inspection reports were selected at random for review. The
audit revealed that all complaints received in the Rolla-South field office were investigated.

Determine if supervisors are monitoring inspector time and activity documentation to
ensure proper use of time by inspector

Adequate Inadequate [ |  NotApplicable [ |  CommentsBelow [ | |




United States Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration
Office of Accountability

District [ South Central | Field Office Rolla South Mine D [(0)(6) 7] Date

Are required Office Reviews (FAR’s) and supervisory follow-up being conducted and

12.  documented according to agency policy and procedure?
(One E-01/Inspector/every six months/FY — minimum)

| Adequate Inadequate | |  NotApplicable [ |  Comments Below [ |

- Are required Field Accompanied Activity Reviews (AAs) and supervisory follow-up
13. being conducted and documented according to agency policy and procedure?
(One E-O1/inspector/FY — miinimum)

Adequate Inadequate [ |  NotApplicable [ |  Comments Below | |

14 Determine if a 104(d) tracking system is in place and being kept current at the office
" being audited

Adequate Inadequate [ |  NotApplicable [ |  Comments Below [ |

15. Determine if required mine files are legible, up to date, and reviewed by supervisors.
Adequate Inadequate [ |  NotApplicable [ |  Comments Below [ |

_i.

16. Determine if supervisors are visiting mines

Adequate Inadequate [ |  NotApplicable [ |  Comments Below [ |

17 Review documentation of staff meetings/safety meetings to determine their
" effectiveness and relevance to the Agency’s mission and current issues

Adequate Inadequate | |  NotApplicable [ |  Comments Below [ |




United States Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration
Office of Accountability

District [ South Central | Field Office | RollaSouth | MineiD [ (P)(6) Date [(b) (6)

Determine if Assistant District Manager is conducting the required second-level
18. reviews and holding supervisors accountable for oversight of Office Reviews, and

Accompanied Activities
(b) (6)

19 Determine if district management personnel are reviewing work products for accuracy
" and completeness

Adequate Inadequate [ |  NotApplicable [ |  Comments Below [ |

Determine if District Manager' is using discretion in granting conferences and is
20. monitoring the ACRI program to ensure that all decisions (including upholding,
modifying or vacating citations) are properly documented and justified by the CLRs

Adequate | | Inadequate [ | NotApplicable [ |  Comments Below

This audit did not include a review of the ACRI Program for the South Central District

Determine if District Manager is holding the Supervisory Special Investigator
21. accountable for properly evaluating Possible Knowing/Willful (PKW) forms and
initiating or denying potential cases

Adequate [ | .Inadequate [ | NotApplicable [ |  Comments Below

The Special Investigations Program was not included in this audit.

29 Determine if managers and supervisors are using required standardized reports to
" review critical data relevant to inspections and investigations

Adequate Inadequate [ |  NotApplicable [ |  Comments Below [ |

Determine if districts are conducting in-depth Peer Reviews in compliance with agency
policy and procedures including monitoring of corrective action plans

Adequate Inadequate | |  Not Applicable | |  Comments Below [ |

23.

The most recent Peer Review in this office was thorough and well documented.




United States Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration
Office of Accountability

District [ South Central | Field Office Mine ID [ (b) (6) Date [ (b) (6)

Is information (mine status, methane liberation, number of employees, etc.) being
24. entered into the MSHA Standardized Information System (MSIS) accurately and in a
timely manner?

Adequate Inadequate | |  NotApplicable [ |  Comments Below [ ]

Determine if inspectors have sufficient equipment and supplies to conduct thorough
inspections.

Adequate Inadequate [ |  NotApplicale [ |  Comments Below [ |

25.

Evaluate the overall condition of the mine relative to the level of enforcement

e documented in previously completed inspections

Adequate [ | Inadequate [ | NotApplicable | |  Comments Below

See Checklist Item No. 2.

4

10



United States Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration
Office of Accountability

District [ South Central | Field Office [ RollaSouth | MineiD [(b)(6) Date [(D) (6)

Attachment B - Citations Issued During the Audit

Mine Citation/Order U.8. Departmant of Labor @
Mine Safety and Health Administration
Secon i=Vioiston Data
Mo De Y1 2. Time (24 Hr Cud‘) 3 Chatlon/ b) (6
(b) (6 [ Order Number ( ) ( )
b‘ séma Ta 5. Operator

(b) ( : ) b) (6)

(b) (6) " ieee (b) (6) (Contractor)
8. Congltion or Practice O Ba. Wriiten Notice (103g) | |

The parking brake on the Nissan fork lift (equipment #43) locataed at the bag
warehouse would not hold the equipment on the steepest grade it traveled.

This condition exposes miners to a hazard of unexpected movemeni of
equipment.

Seq Continuation Form (MSHA Form 7000-38) [ ]

9. Violation | A Health[_) [ B. Section C. Par/Section of
Safety| ) of Aci Thle 30 CFR 57.14101a2
Other| |
Sechion I-inageciors Bvalaton
10 Gravity:
A Injury or llinoss (hes) (is):  No Likelinood [] Uniikely fs] Reasonabty Likely (| Highly Likely || Occurred ]
& ;ﬂm;,rbi? m '? l:-e: No Lost Workdays || Lost Workdays Or Restricted Outy Permanently Disabling Fatal ]
C. Significant end Substential: Yes [ No D. Number of Parsons Affected: 001
11. Negligence (check cne) A None ] 8 Low [ C. Moderate | D. High | | E. Reckiess Distsgard []
12, Type of Action  104a | 13 Typs of ssuance (check one)  Citation (7, Order []  Safeguard [  Wrinen Notice [
14. InHlial Astion E. Citatlon/ F. Daiad Mo Da Yr

A Cliatien [) B, Ordes [_| C Safeguard || D. Written Notice [] Ordar Number
15 Area o7 Equipment

1o Tenminaton Do i, Datu(b')“’(ga)' Y |8 Time (24 Hr Clock) (b) (6)
Section WI-Termination Action
7. Actonto Terminste The parking brake was repaired. This citation is hereby
terminated.
18. Terminated |\ 5oy MODZ YT o rime (26 Hr. Clock) (b) (6)
(b) (6)
Saction (V-Automsted System Oata
19, Type of Inspection 20. Event Number 21. Primary or Mil!
(activity code) E0l (b) (6) P l

22, Signature 23. AR Numbver

(b) (6) I (b) (6)
MSHAFormhoc—aAvroe rised) n with the provisions of the Small Busi R menl Fawnous Act of 1606, the Small Busiases Admingtraion has

d & Natk Smadl Busl ang 0 y O * angt 10 Regh medshm from smaH busin abaut federal agency

enforcement actions. The Ombudsman iy : ctivitios and rates gach Boercy's iveness to smaf busin ¥ you wian to on the
nforcament actiona of MSHA, you may caft 1.808.REGPAIR (1-888.734-3247), or write the O ot Smak Bust , Offics: of the Natonal Omb 409 3rd
Street, SW MC 2120, Wunlncwn DC 20418 Plosse nota. nOwevar, that your night o file a with e O snmhwoﬁwmh&mmm nchuding

the right ©© contast 5 and p and cbtam a heering befor= the Federal Mine Satety and Heath Revisw Commsiasion




United States Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration
Office of Accountability

District [ South Central | Field Office Mine ID Date [ (b) (6)

Mine Citation/Order U.S. Department of Labor @
Mine Safety and Health Administration

Soction i-Viclation Data

(b) (M()s Da Yr 12. Time (2(4b r-)lr(%lo)d() 3 g,::,:;,umw (b) (6)
4. Served To 8. Operator
(6) (6) . (b) (6)
stné 7. Mine ID (b) (6) (Corfiadan)
8. Coaa%onori’mcﬁea 8a. Wriden Notice (103g) | |

The ladder that leade to the spinner platform in the bag house did not have
the ladder opening protected by a railing or barriecr.
This condition exposes miners to a tall hazard.

PHOTON 1 4, R EN

Sce Cominvetion Morm (MSHA Ferm 7000-3a3 [

9. Viokation | A Health [ ' 8. Section C. Part/Section of
Safety[_ | of Act Titie 30 CFR 57.11012
Other|_ |
Beglion 1l s
10. Graviy:
A Injury or iliness (hag) (is). No Likslihood | ] Urllikely |7] Reascaably Likely | | Highly Likely [} Occurred (]
= l’g:z;'&m:d : :; No Last Workdays [} Lost Workdays Or Rastricted Duty jy| Pernenently Disabling || Fatal []
C. Significant and Substantial Yes [ No [ ID. Number of Persons Affected: 001
11. Negligence (check one) A None (] B.Low [ C Modsrale ¥ D High (J E. Recidess Disregard |_|
12. Type of Action 1044 [ 13. Type of tssuance (check ono)  Citation ¥l Order (] Safeguard [T)  Wiitten Notics [
14, Inttiat Action E. Cratiory F. Dated Mo Ds Yr

A.Citation | | B.Order [ O.Safeguard [] D. Written Notice | Order Number

15. Area or Equipment

16. Terminati R Mo Da Y

grmin&tion Cuio Aom(b)(°) " |5 Tme et cocy (D) (6)
Section Hi-Terminaton Acton
17. Action ta Terminste A chain guard was installed. This cilation is hereby
terminated.
18. Termin: Mo Y

emmigated, 2 oate 1) (é’; " 8. Tims 24 . Clocty (D) (6)
Section IV- Sysiam Date
15. Type of Inspaction 20. Event Number 21 Primery or MAl

{actvity code) EO01 (b) (6) »
22. Signature 23. AR Numbet

(b) (6) (b) (6)

MSHA Fosmn 7000-3, Apr 08 {revisad) In sccordance with the provisions of the Small Regulatory Faeness Act of 1906, the Smakl Busineas Adminisiration has

bl o Natk small and Agr meyom;dynmwwhgbndhmanwumm from zmall buein #bout fedordl egency
srforceman actions. The Ombudaman ly evall and rates aach agency's ‘ #f you wash t0 commen on lhe
enforcement actions of MSHA, you may ol 1-888-REG-FAIR (1.888.734-3247), or write the Ombudeman asmammnm Offire of the Nafions: Ombudsman, 409 3rg
Streat, SW MC 2120, wEngchmtl Piaase note. however, Lhwt your right to flie & with the O i in asfduy tomyolmmomyoumhava nehing
the right o comtest ¢+ P penaltes ana oblain & hearing befor= the Feden: Mme Safety end Health Raviow Commission
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United States Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration
Office of Accountability

District [ South Central | Field Office Rolla South Mine ID [(b) (6) Date [(b) (6)

Mine Citation/Order U.S. Depzrtment of Labor @
Mine Safety and Heaith Administration
BSoction {-Vioistion Deta —
Date b) (%")D_' Yr Jz. T»me("’j L(k6f)‘--~\ Igﬁ S (b) (6)
4 Served To §_Operator
(b)(6) (b) (6)
R Mina ine
(0) ®) " (D) (6) (Gorinant
8. Condition o Prectics == 89 Written 0o

The lower elevated walkway of the hydrator in bagging area had tools left
lying in the walkway.
This condition exposes miners to a trip and fall hazard.

OMEYELYY e

See Confinuation Form (MBHA Form 7000.38) [ |

9. Viclation | A Heaith | | B Section C. ParvSecton of
Safety| | of Act Title 30 CFR 57.20003u
Other|
veton
10. Gravity:
A Injury or iliness (has) (is): No Likelihood || Uniikely b/ Reasonably Likety | ] Highly Uikely Occurred (|
% sanuety bo apacien tone:  NoLost Worldays | Lost Workdays Or Restricled Duy W1 Parmanently Disebing O faw(]
C.Sigficant and SUbSIANEY * v | | No D. Number of Persons Affected: ¢
11. Neglig=nce (check one) A None [ | B.low || C. Moderats | D. High vl E. Reckiess Disregsrd |
12. Type of Action | (4a 13. Type of Issusncs (check one)  Ctationlj Order ]  Safeguard |  Witten Notics [
14. initial Action E. Ciaton/ F.Dalad MoDe Yr

A. Citellon !} 8.0rder ) C. Safeguerd [ D. Written Notice [ Order Number
15 Aves or Equipment

18, Termination Due Mo Da Y

ADas (1) (B) B. Time (24 Hr. Clock) (D) (6)
Soction II-Termination AGton
17. Actionto Teminete The t.o0ols were removed. This citation is hereby terminated.

. T Ds Y
18. Terminated |\ Dute (b’;?G.Y " |8 Tme 2eH coy (D) (6)
Section MV-Automaad System Date
19. Type of Inspaction 20. Event Number 21, Primary or Ml

g ©) () :
22. Signature (b) (6) |23. AR Numter (b) (6)
MSHA Form 7000-3, Apr 05 (1 Q) L with the ps of e Smadl Businegy Reguisiory Ent Falmens Act of 1996 mmsm-mmi
ewabiished 5 National Smail Buminass snd Agri o Ombudsman and 10 Regional Faimest Boards W receive froon simah about feden! agency
enforcament acions. Tha Ombude: ly eval 4 and rates asch agancy’s to small ¥ you wish 1o comment on the
mmmmaMSHA,wuwu‘l‘-mnE@FAﬂ(hiuJu-mn.crnrhmf‘ dt at Small Bus) Adii Offics of (ne Natonal Ombugsman_ 409 3rg
Sroet, SW MG 2120, Weshington, DC 20418, Plesse note, however, sl youl rigid o fie & with the Om 8 i 00N 1 any oher rights you May have, inchxdng
he right o contest and p &nd oblain & heasing bokxe tha Fadem! Mine Safety and Hearn Review Commission.
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United States Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration
Office of Accountability

District | South Central | Field Office Rolia South Mine iD Date [(b) (6)

Mine Citation/Order , U.S. Department of Labor éé
Mine Safety and Health Administration )

Secthon | -Violation Data

1. Date Mo Da Yr 2 Time (24 Hr. Clodk) 3. Citstions b) (6

6 I (b) (6) °’°'f"“'“""( ) (6)
. Servad To 8. Operator

b6 (b) (6)

8 Min 7 Wine 1D

(b) (6) " (b) (6) o

8. Condhlon or Practice 82. Writtan Notice (105g) | 1|

The 1st level walkway of hydrator #1 at Vertical was not being maintained in
safe condilion. 4 inch minus material was allowed to accumulate for a dislance
of approximately 5 feet.

This condition exposes miners to trip and fall hazard.

Ca VS ARUATIS LI

See Continuation: Fo-m (MSMA Form 7000-38) )

8. Violation | A Health] | B. Section C. Par/Saction of
Satey ¢ of At Thie 30 CFR 57.20003s
Other,
Socton li-inspectors Evaluation
10. Gravity:
A. Injury or litness (hes) (8): No Likelihood | | Uniikely Reasonably Likely | | Highty Likely (] Ocourred
uld
B 1’3,‘,‘,’{,,‘;';2"::;,‘:“ obe.  Nolost Workdays (7 Lost Workdays Or Rastcted Duty i} Permanently Disabling (| Fatal [
C. Significant and Subs:antiat Yoo 7] No I D. Number of Persons Affected: 001
11, Negligencs (check one) A.None [] B. Low [7] C.Moderate [ D. High [l E. Reckiess Disregard [|
12. Type of Action ] 04a | 13. Type of lssuance (chock one)  Citation W]  Ordsr| | Safeguard (]  Wiritien Notce [
14_ initial Action €. Citatiorv F. Dated Mo Da Yr

A.Citation [7] B Order | | C.Sufeguard | ] D.Written Notice ] Order Number

16. Area or Equipment

. Tarmin ue Mo Da Yr .
16 Tarmination Due | - pats 1) (6} B.Time 24 Hr.Clok) (D) (6)

Section Hi-Tesm:nauon Action

17. Adtion to Terminate The material has been cleaned up. This citation is hereby
terminated.

18. Temni MoDp Y
8 Torminated |\ Date (b)‘(’ ; " B Tmeerr ok () (6)
Socton V-Automated System Data
19. Typo of Inspection 20. Evert Number 21. Piinary or Mill

(activity code) k01 (b) (6) p
22 Signature (b) (6) 23, AR Number (b) ( )
MSHA Form 7000-3. Apr 08 (ravised) n of the Small Businesa Regulsiory ENorcament Faimass Act of 1898, e Srall Businsss Adminlstration has
asmnNmionuSmnllemsuthm RQUMOHMMN10WF&MMnmtmhanmmmmam
enfurement acons. Tho Ombudaman aRA rateR each agancy's to smail b ¥ you wish to onthe
en'ovwnentac\lmsolMSHA.mmcyd1MEG-FAR(1-aum:un,wwaam!‘ dsman ol Smob Bush A y Qffice of the Ombud 400 3rd

Street, W MC 2120, Washington, DC 20418 Plaese note, however, tivat your nigit to Rle a comment wit: homnhhmmammvwmmm inciuding
merigmbm«m:mmmmmmhnmmmmmm&wmm&w«mmr
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United States Department of Labor
iMine Safety and Health Administration
Office of Accountability

‘

District [ South Central | Field Ofice | RollaSouth | MineID [(b)(6) Date [(b)(6)

Mine Citation/Order U.S. Department of Labor (
Mine Safety and Health Administration ?>

Saction -Vioiation Data

D Oa Ye 2 Time (24 Hr. Clock) 3. Chatlon/

TG R Y Smramer () ()

4 Sansed To § Operalor

(b) (6) (b) (6)

(% )Ml(né) 7. Mine 10 (b) (6) Corirao

8_Condition or Practice - 8a. Written Notice (103g) 1 |

The walkway of the small sly dust level at Vertical was not being maintsined
in safe condition. A air house was left lying in the walkway.
This condition expozes miners to a trip and fall hazard.

ST N N
Gee Comnustion Form (MSHA Form 7006-33)  []
9 Violation | A. Haalth [ B. Section C. ParvSection of
Safety of Act Title 30 CFR 57.20003a
Other
Seclion li-inspecitors Evalsalior:
10, Gravity;
A Injuty or lliness (has) (is): Ne Likelihood | | Unlikely {y| Reasonably Likely [ Highly Ukety | Ocgummed [
D aennbty b cepecrod tope: | NoLost Workdays [ | Lost Workdays Or Resticted Duty /) Permanentyy Dsabing [ Fatal ]
C. Significant and Substantial: Yes [ No R D. Number of Persons Affected: 001
11, Negigenoe (check one) A None |_| B.low | | C. Moderate [ ] D. High M E. Recklee= Digrogord |_]
12. Type of Action  104a | 13 Type of lssuanea (check one)  Citaton i  Order |  Sofeguand (|  Written Notice [
14, Inkia) Action E Citation/ F. Dated MaDa Yr
A.Citation 7] B. Order [, C.Safeguard [ | D Wrilen Notioe || Order Number

15. Area or Equipmam

18. Tarmination Dus 7 Mc Da Yr B, Time (24 Hr. Clock) (b) (6)

A (b) (6)

Saction lIi-Terminglion Action

7. Acinto Teminee The hose was picked up and hung on hanger. This citation is
hereby terminated.

18. Terminmted MoDa Y1 i

A Date B. Time (24 Hr Ciock)

(b) (6) ¢ (b) (6)
Sechion V--Automalod Syslom Deta
19. Typa of Inspection 20. Event Number 21.Pﬂnwynr_id?i'l
(scthty code) FO1 (b) (6) S

22. Signature 23 AR Nuinber

(b) (6) I (b) (6)
MSNAFofm'rnoo.: Apr 04 (i d) in wih the pro=isions of tho Small B R = rmmwm msmmmmmm

Small B and A ity Om wmnemmlrmm:m about feckal agercy

onfuwmﬂuollons The Ormb ity dvitizs and rate= oach agercy's to amail busi I!ynumnbwmmanm
MMMMGNAMMHHMEG-FNR(1-500-730-33!7).01%”‘“ L at Smati Busi Adiring bon, Ofce of the 409 3rd
Svest, SW MG 2120. Washingion, DC 20416, Pease now. howaver, thal your righi to fis a with the O Bhnudmnwmyownmywmm inchuging
mongmnmmmnwwwwmmaummmmmrnqumsmﬂHmmmm
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District | South Central

Mine Citation/Order
Continuation

United States Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration

Office of Accountability

| Field Office Mine ID  [(b) (6)

Date

U.S. Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Heaith Administration

Soction (-8ubseguent Action/Contnuston D=

1. Subsequent Action 'InfC?ﬂfiﬂUation 2. Dated Mo Da Yt 3. Chationy (b) (6)
] O (Original 1ssue) (b) (B) Order Number
4, Served To & Operator
(b) (6) (b) (6)
(b) (é) . Mine ID (b) (6) (Contractor;
Section -Justificaton for Action
Change From To
18. A. Temminated Data , (b) (6) (b) (6)

Reason (b) (6) was cnitered in orror.

Sea Cantirusshon Form [:

Section I1-Subsequont Action Teken

8. Extended T -
© ° A. Date Mo Da

B Tinw (24 He Clock)

{3 C.vacated [ D.Teruinated § E Modified

Secdon V-dnspectios: Data

8. Type of Inspection EO01

10. Evant Number (b) (6)

11 Signature
(b)(6)

AR Number

(b) (6)

12. Date

Mo D=

(6)

Yt

13. Tune (24 Hr. Clock)

(b) (6)

MSHA Forr 7000-3a. Mar 85 (1cvised)

L]
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United States Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration
Office of Accountability

| Field Office Mine ID  [(b) (6) Date [(b) (6)

District [ South Central

Mine Citaton/Order U.S. Devartment of Labor @

Mine Safety and Health Administration
Saclion I-Violation Data
y o D 2 Time (24 A, Giogkt 3. Citation/
() (8) [ ™ B Saertumoer (0) (©)

4, Served To 5, Opstator

(b) ( 6) (b) (6)

6)®)

8. Congiion or Practee

7. Mine 1D (b) (6)

({Contractor:
8a. Written Notica (103g) [ |

A drain cover in the floor near the material bin for classifler (old PCC)
had been removed exposing opening.
This condition exposes miners to a trip and fall hazard.

AL BTN -1
Sea Comsuation Fosm (MSHA Form 7000-3a) | |

8. Violation | A Meshh| | B. Section C. Part/Sactlon of

Safety| | of Act Title 36 CFR 57.11012

Other| |
Secton 11 ‘s Eval
10, Gravity:

A_Injury of liiness (has) (is): No Likefhood [ Uniikely |_J Reasonably Likely ] Highly Ukely || Occurred ]

B. ¥ Of ) -
::::!;’b.'ah:;;:;:: ';‘:e: No Lost Workdays | | Lost Workdays Or Restricied Duty () Permanently Disabling [) Fatal |_]

C. Significant ana Substantiat: Yos %) No [J Jil Number of Persons Affected 001
11. Neghigercs (check ona) A.None ] B.low| | C. Maderate |7 D Hgh ) E. Reckless Disregard [ |
12. Typoof Action  104a ( 13. Type of Issuanca (chock one)  Citstionp#] Order{ |  Safeguard (]  Wnitten Notice | |
14. inkial Action E. Citation/ F Dated Mo Oa Yr

A. Citation [] B Order (] C Safeguard || D. Written Notice ] Order Number
18. Area ar Equipment
16. Tarmination Due Mo Da Yr .

A Date . B. Time (24 Hr. Cloek)
(b) (6) (b) (6)

Section ill-Termination Action

17, Action to Terminate

The

cover has been replaced. This cifation is hereby terminated.

, Termi M .
18, Tesminsted s D"(b) (6§)Da Yr B Time (24 Hr. Clock) (b) (6)
Saclion V.Automawed Sysiem Data
10. Type of Inspection 20. Evsat Numbar 21 Pivnary or Mili

(activity code) EO1 (b) (6) P
22 Signature 23. AR Number

(b) (6) § (b) (6)

MSHA Form 70003, Apr 08 () } w with the p of the Smatt Regulatory E Faimess Adl of 1098, he Smak Business Adminisiragon has
astabliehad a N Small Bush and A Rcwum&nnn:mmwnnkmalmestomvemmhmmmwmmM
enfoceaent scions  The Of 5as and rates each agency's w© small b nywmhwcommwnm
auforcemant Actions of MSNA. you may colt 1.880-REG-FAIR (1-888-734-3247), or wriwe the O at Smai B A % Offics ot the 408 3

Streat, SW MC 2120, Washingion, DC 204168, Pleasc note, hiowever, hat your right 1o flia &

the right to conies! chate

il with the O uhmﬁmmar\ymmnm vnyhavn inciuding
and ottam e hearng bafore the Fedserat Mine Saisty and Heshh Review Commission.

ond proposed p

17



United States Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration

Office of Accountability

District | South Central

| Field Office | Rolla South

| Mine D [(b)(6) Date [(b)(6)

Mine Cltation/Order U.S. Department of Labor (é
Continuation g Mine Safety and Health Administration %
Section l=Subsequont Actlon/Continuatinn Data
1. Subsequenl Aclion 12 Continuation 2 Dated Mo Da Yr 3. Cnation/ (b) (6)
[ {Onginal Issue) (b) (6) Order Number
@ Suived To [5. Operator
(b) (6) (b) (6)
8. Ming 7. Mine 1D (b) (6 (Contracior)
(b) (6) )
Section li-Justification for Aclion
Change From To
9. C. ParyScection 5§7.11012 57.20003¢

Reason The wrong Part/Section was entered in ervor.

[l

Seo Continualion Form [

Section il—Subsequant Action Taken

8. Extended To Mo
A Date

Da

Y
d H Tuow (78 Hr Clock)

[ €. Vacated [ | D Tsminalsd Rl E Modified

‘Sechon {V-Inspection Data

9. Type of Inspection  R()}

10 Fvsnt Numher (b) (6)

11, Signature

(b) (6)

| AR Number

(b) (6)

12 Date

Mo Du

(b) (6)

Yr

T3 Time (34 Fe Clotk)
(b) (6) -

MSHA FForm 7000-3a, Mar B5 (revized;
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United States Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration
Office of Accountability

¢

District | South Central | Field Office [ RollaSouth | MineID [(b) (6) Date [(b) (6)
Mine Citation/Order U.S. Department of Labor
l Mine Safety and Health Administration ((?)

Section (-Violalion Dala

1. Date (b)M?6D), Ye 12 Time (24(?;)0%10 \3. gi:::ro:/umber (b) (6)
4. Sarvad To 5. Operator
(b) (6) (b) (6)
(b )6 (\gr;e 7. Ming (D (b) (6) Colitagied

8 Condition or Practica Ba Written Notice (103g) [ |
The fire extinguisher located near slurry bins (old PCC) was out annual
inspection. Last documented inspection was December 2009.
Not maintaining inspections on fire fighting equipment creates a hazard of
not being able to fight fires in there early stages.

See Continuation Form (MGHA Corm 7000-3a; [

9. Violaton | A Health 7] B Section C. Part/Section of
Safety 7] af Act Title 30 CFR §7.4201a2
Othee ]
Scchon li-inspactor’s Evaluation
10 Gravity:
A. Injury or liness (has) (is): No Likelihood [ Unlikely (] Reasonably Likely [ Highly Likely [ Oceurred [

B ;ﬂ:&;’;’;"::;g::’;;: NoLost Workdays L | Lost Workdays Or Restilcted Duty bl Parmanently Disabling | | Fatal |_|

C. Significant and Substantial Yos No ‘D Number aof Parsone Affacted om
11. Negligence (¢check ene) A. None (] B. Low ) C. Mudwats V) D High || E. Rockluss Disregad ||
12 Type of Action | (04a _I 13. Type of Issuance {check one)  Chation ] Order |  Safsguard[ |  Written Notice [ |
14. Initral Action F Citaton/ F Dated Mo Da ¥r

A Ciation {] 8.Order (7] C. Safeguard | | D. Writen Notice [} Order Number

15. Arcs or Equipment

8. Termination Ove |, pye MO8 Y B Time e Cok) () (6)

«(b) (6)
Section Ul- Temination Aofinn
17 Actionto Temminate  The fire extinguisher was removed from service. This citation is
hereby terminated,

18 Temnated |, po, MoDa YTy et cloay (D) (6)

(b) (6)

Saction V--Automated System Dats

19 Type of inspection 20 Event Nurber 21. Prmary or Ml
{aclivity code) EM (b) (6) P

22 Signature (b) (6) 23, AR Number (b) (6)

SHA Form 7003—:. Apr 00 (rovised) in with the prov of the Small Business R Yy Enf 1 Fairness Act of 1998, tha Small Hustonss Arkuuiishiive fuw

blish=d a N I Busk and Agmzfra Ragmamy (Mrnummnn and 10 Regiahal Fagness hlnum\ W reresve Fow smadl anout lrlaal agunicy
Snforcemmunt vclions T 16 Ombuduns: Bvitics and (alus cch URTICY'S [C3po: 3P o sl busi If you wish to comment on tha
crforscrment aclions of MSHA, you may call \-GB&REG-FAIR {1-888-734-3247), or wiito the Omina: Va2l Small i Admiii iosi, Office of the Netional Ombudame=:. 400 3rd
Str=et, SW MC 2120, Washington, DC 4u416. Please nole, however, that your righl to file 8 with the O i3 in sgduan 10 any other nghts you may have, incluaing
the ngnt to contest and piup and oblain 2 haasing betole the Faderal Mine Sataly and Health Keview Commissn.
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United States Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration
Office of Accountability

District Field Office [ RollaSouth | MinelD [ (b)(6) ] Date [ (b)(6) _ |
Attachment C — Examples of Citations with Questionable Evaluations

Mine ID | Violation Issued Type 30 CFR S&S | Likely | Injury | Affect | Neg

©)©  ©6) O oona) | 6742008 | N | UL | FTL | 1 | Mod

The power cord for the 220 volt heater located in the #2 Nash pump house at the Mississippi rotary plant
does not enter the frame of the heater through a proper bushing. The insulation has stripped back
exposing the inner conductois.

Were the inner conductors insulated? Was the heater energized? How long had the condition existed?

i

Mine ID | Violation Issued Type 30 CFR S&S | Likely | Injury | Affect | Neg
104(a)
b) (6

(b) (6) (b) () | (b)(6) Citation | 5612004 N uL FTL 1 Mod
The positive welding lead located on the #29 welder located at the pebble bagging area of the
Mississippi rotary has an opening exposing the inner conductors. The opening is approximately .25
inches by .5 inches. This condition exposes miriers to the hazard of shock/burn.

Was the welder energized? Where was the opening in the insulation located?

Mine ID | Violation Issued Type 30 CFR S&S | Likely | Injury | Affect | Neg
(b) () (b) 6)  |(b) (6) Citation | 5712004 N uL FTL 1 Mod

The power cord for the 480 volt floor fan located by the #5 kiln burner floor has been damaged. This
exposes the energized inner conductors. This condition exposes miner to the hazard of electrocutior.

The narrative of the citation supports a finding of S&S, but does not describe the extent of damage to the

power cord.

Mine ID | Violation Issued Type 30 CFR S&S | Likely | Injury | Affect | Neg
b) (6 b) (6 104(a)

(b) 6) |(b)(6) l( ) (6) Citaton | 57-14207 N uL LD 1 Mod

The unattended pickup truck parked on a grade outside the maintenance office does not have the
wheels chocked or turned into the rib. The #550 truck has the transmission in park and the engine it

running. This condition exposes miners to the hazard of the equipment moving unexpectedly.

The narrative of the citation supports an S&S evaluation. Was the park brake provided/set? Who was
operating the truck last?

Mine I | Violation Issued Type 30 CFR S&S | Likely | Injury | Affect | Neg
b) (6 b) (6 104(8)
(b) (6)  |(b) (6) (b) (6) Citation | 57-14112(0) | N uL FTL 1 Low

The #7 kiln dust chamber accesses hatch was found to be open. The opening on the dust chamber

measured approximately 24 inches in diameter. This condition exposed the miner to a fall hazard. One
miner accesses this area as needed for scrubber cleaning.

What is the distance a miner would fall? How often is the area accessed? This section of 30 CFR was
cited 12 times at this mine during the previous 24 months.
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United States Department of Labor
Mine Safety and Health Administration
Office of Accountability

District Field Office [ RollaSouth | Mine ID (b) (6) Date [ (D) (6)
Mine ID | Violation Issued Type 30 CFR S&S | Likely | Injury | Affect | Neg

| (b) (6) b) (6 b) (6 104(a)
(b) (6) (b) (6) Citation | 57-14112@)(1) | N UL PD 1 | Mod

The guard on the drive motor for the #1 oselating pan conveyor has openings exposing the moving

machine parts. The opering is approximately 4 inches by 8 inches. This conditon exposes miners to an
entanglement hazard.

This section of 30 CFR was cited(b) (6)

at this mine during the previous 24 months.

Mine ID | Violation Issued Type 30 CFR S&S | Likely | Injury | Affect | Neg
(b)(6) [(b)(6) | b)(6) 104@) | 5645005 | v RL | PD 1| Mod
Citation

The miner standing in the middle of the 2x12 board on the second story of the MCC at the river load out
area was not wearing a safety belt and line. The miner on the other end of the board was wearing fall
protection. The 2x12 is approximately 5 feet above the floor. The floor of this area contains several large
pieces of equipment. This condition exposes miners to the hazard of falling.

Was consideration given to issuing this as a 107(a) imminent danger order? Neither the citation nor the
inspection notes indicate that fall protection was provided.

Mine ID | Violation |, Issued Type 30 CFR S&S | Likely | Injury | Affect | Neg
b) (6 b) (6 b) (6 104(d)(1) .
(b) (6) (b) (6) I( ) (6) Citation. | 56-15005 Y RL FTL 1 High

(b) (6) had worked from a elevated pipe tray on(b) (6) installing a plastic
two inch water line. This was on the pipe tray that runs between the dewatering screens and the wash
tower. This was approximately a six inch beam with a opening approximately twenty-four inches wide to

the other six inch beam located on the other side of the tray. The beam was located approximately
twenty feet from ground level. If (b) (6)were to fall he would land on the concrete pad below. The
company policy states that all persons will use proper PPE/tie off when working where there is a danger
of falling. This violation is an unwarrantable failure to comply with a mandatory standard. The plastic
water line was approximately two to three hundred feet long.

Citation was issued more than a month after it was alleged to have occurred. Notes do not document

why the citation was issued (condition or practice was not observed). Citation was terminated after the
inspector discussed fall protection with the mine operator.
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INTERNAL REVIEW AUDIT MATRIX SCORING SYSTEM - ROLLA - SOUTH FIELD OFFICE AUDIT, MARCH 07, 2011
Applies . Category Internal
Internal mmation )
to terna Summa Base |E2%€ RESPONSIBILITY Review
CAT Review or - Points SUM
Program S Point Category
Findings Examples - -
Area Value | Value |Inspector =1 |Supervisor = 2 [District = 3 Percentage
MSHA failed to identify :'slc‘:::s‘r;:mi”g'
A , roof, o
1 | C/MNM ;he S:\:zuolr;;n ventilation, anything 5 0 0 0 0 0 0%
PP P that rzquires approval
Not following policy,
procedures, failure to
Incomplete or cite violations,
2 | C/MNM inadequate inspections inspecting all 5 &) 1 2 0 8 73%
areas/equipment,
conducting 103(i}
inspections
Supervisors did not No review/lax review of
3 | C/MNM |provide adequate inspection reports/ 5 0 N/A 0 o] 0 0%
oversight PKW/SAR/FARIAA
Improper evaluation of |Self evident/
gravity, negligence, Inadequate o,
4 C/MNM type of enforcement documentation/note 5 5 1 2 0 8 73%
action taking
Peor Reviews wers Did not include audit
5 | C/MNM [ “ocuate reviews, follow up, 4 0 N/A 0 0 0 0%
i FARS/AAS
Not following ACRI
policy/handbook,
R management oversight
6 | CMNM [[reakness e ACRI ot sor rogram AcRi| 3 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0%
program consistent with
Mine Act, 30 CFR,
MSHA policy
Key Indicators, Mine
Profile, Inspection
A t
7 | CvNm [USHADaEnet o mpietion Statsties, | 2 0 0 0 0 0 0%
Databases not
maintained
Lack of Unwarrantable
8 | C/MNM [Failure Tracking Self Explanatory 1 0 N/A 0 0 0 0%
System
Prior employment,
[¢] C/MNM |[Conflict of Interest supervision of relatives, 1 0 0 0 0 0%
ete.
Failure to comply with ::;:::g(or:g: ?cii:ts
- s 0,
10 C/MNM H;zcaez;iuf:smplalnts procedures not being 1 0 0 0 0 0 0%
P followed
Failure to conduct No on-site
: - . - o,
11 C glr:/:ss;ng?;::s for mult investigations 1 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0%
Wherever retreat
Failure to obssrve |mining is conducted o,
12 ¢ retreat mining {except longw=ll 1 0 0 0 0 0 0%
4 |mining)
TOTAL SCORE 16
Minimum Score =0 Summary: A) The audit revealed the Rolla-South field office had 2 of the 12 most

Coal Maximum Score = 96
MNM Maximum Score = 85

common issues found in the internal review reports as issues identified by
the audit team.

B)

program area were identified during this audit.

2 of the 10 internal review categories that relate to the metal-nonmetal





